
From: Janis Offermann
To: "Molly West"; "Jennie Mitchum"; "Execs"
Cc: "Alicia Forsythe"; "Kevin Spesert"; "Laurie Warner Herson"
Subject: RE: [WARNING: UNSCANNABLE EXTRACTION FAILED]RE: [WARNING: UNSCANNABLE EXTRACTION FAILED]RE:

[WARNING: UNSCANNABLE EXTRACTION FAILED]RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Sites Reservoir introduction meeting
Date: Thursday, March 30, 2023 1:39:00 PM
Attachments: Draft_MOA brief_10182022.pdf

Good afternoon, all
I am writing on behalf of the Sites Project Authority (Authority), with reference to our upcoming
meeting with you at your Administration offices on Tuesday, April 18, where we hope to bring you
up to date on the status of the  Sites Reservoir Project and hear about any concerns you might have.
 
Of particular note, we are wondering if you have any comments on the Project’s Revised Draft
Environmental Impact Report/Supplemental Draft Environmental Impact Statement (RDEIR/SDEIS),
which was made available for public review on November 12, 2021.  To date, the Authority has not
received any formal comments from you. The comment period for the RDEIR/SDEIS ended on
January 28, 2022, but we are able to receive comments for a short while longer.  Please note that we
will need any comments very soon, as the Authority is planning to publish the final document in
June. For your convenience, the RDEIR/SDEIS is available at Environmental Review - Sites Reservoir
(sitesproject.org). We are happy to discuss this more at the upcoming meeting.
 
We would also like to introduce you to the possible use of a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) that
would allow the Authority to continue to work with the you on assessing and protecting tribal
cultural resources following finalization of the RDEIR/SDEIS. It would allow consultations to move
forward without rushing, but would allow the Authority to state that AB 52 consultation was
completed under CEQA.  The MOA would also identify ways that local tribes could participate in
future project planning and implementation. A MOA conceptual brief is attached for your
consideration.
 
We look forward to meeting with you in a few weeks.
 
Best regards
Janis
 
Janis Offermann, M.A., RPA
Cultural Resources Manager
M: 530.220.4918
jaoffermann@montrose-env.com
Please note new email address after April 1, 2023. I can still receive emails
as janis@horizonh2o.com; however, all of my outgoing emails to  you will be
from jaoffermann@montrose-env.com. 
________________________________________
Montrose Environmental
1801 7th Street, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95811 
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DRAFT 


Brief Outline on Development of a Memorandum of Agreement between the Sites Project Authority 
and Native American Tribes Consulting on the Sites Reservoir Project under AB52 


October 18, 2022 


Purpose and Need 


Mitigation measures for addressing significant impacts to tribal cultural resources by the Sites Reservoir 
Project (Project) have been identified but need to be refined and further developed through 
consultations between tribes formally consulting on the Project pursuant to AB 52 (the Yocha Dehe 
Wintun Nation [Yocha Dehe] and Cachil Dehe Band of Wintun Indians [Cachil Dehe]) and the Sites 
Project Authority (Authority).  Although the Authority and Yocha Dehe have been working diligently on 
consultation efforts, activities have taken longer than expected for a variety of reasons including delays 
in getting agreement from DWR to release data, formatting data for use by the tribe, tribal access to 
Project lands to review areas of cultural significance, and the overall challenges of workload balancing 
during COVID restrictions.  The Authority is proposing to complete the Final Environmental Impact 
Report for the Project in May 2023, and it is recognized by all parties that identification of tribal cultural 
resources within the Project footprint and preparation of appropriate mitigation and treatment 
measures cannot be concluded by that time.   


Preparation of a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) would formalize the collaborative partnership 
between the Authority, Yocha Dehe, Cachil Dehe, and the additional three tribes that are traditionally or 
culturally affiliated with the Project area to continue to work together to identify tribal cultural 
resources, and methods to mitigate impacts to and manage tribal cultural resources. The partnership 
defined by the MOA would allow conclusion of consultation under AB 52, while providing a framework 
for continued collaboration between the Authority and the tribes during Project planning, 
implementation, and operations.   


Potential MOA Preamble topics: 


• Identification of participants in the MOA 
o Yocha Dehe 
o Cachil Dehe 
o Authority 
o Invite Kletsel Dehe (Cortina Rancheria Band of Wintun Indians), Paskenta Band of 


Nomlaki Indians, and Grindstone Indian Rancheria of Wintun-Wailaki Indians 
• Mitigation Measures in the EIR 
• Acknowledgement that participation in the MOA by Yocha Dehe and other tribes does not imply 


their approval of the project 
• Formalization of collaborative partnership 


Potential MOA Stipulations topics: 


• Continuing consultation/engagement with Tribal partners 
• Confidentiality of information provided by the Tribes 
• Continue tribal cultural resources identification  







• Various administration stipulations 


Potential identification topics for discussion 


• Interests/concerns of the Tribes  
• Compensation plan/agreements 
• Confidentiality 
• Ethnographic Study  


o Work with tribal elders to document locations of significance 
o Compensation for informants 
o Hiring tribal members to assist with elder interviews and research 


Potential topics for avoidance, minimization and mitigation discussion  


• Interests/concerns of the Tribes  
• Treatment of burials within the Project footprint, including identification of permanent, private 


and secure areas for reburial of human remains in perpetuity 
• Participation in future archaeological studies (survey, testing, data recovery)  


o Monitoring 
o Hiring tribal members as archaeological trainees 


• Curation of recovered materials during archaeological studies  
• Ethnobotanical studies (could be included under Ethnographic study) 
• Tribal participation in developing trails, interpretive signage, etc. for recreation 
• Tribal participation in developing a museum/visitor center, if one is developed 


 







 
 
 
 

From: Molly West <mwest@colusa-nsn.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, March 16, 2023 9:12 AM
To: Janis Offermann <janis@horizonh2o.com>; Jennie Mitchum <jmitchum@colusa-nsn.gov>
Cc: Execs <Execs@colusa-nsn.gov>; Alicia Forsythe <aforsythe@sitesproject.org>; Kevin Spesert
<kspesert@sitesproject.org>; Laurie Warner Herson <laurie.warner.herson@phenixenv.com>
Subject: RE: [WARNING: UNSCANNABLE EXTRACTION FAILED]RE: [WARNING: UNSCANNABLE
EXTRACTION FAILED]RE: [WARNING: UNSCANNABLE EXTRACTION FAILED]RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Sites
Reservoir introduction meeting
 

EXTERNAL MESSAGE: Do not click any links or open any attachments unless you trust the sender
and know the content is safe.

Thank you!  We can meet in our Administration building located at 3730 Hwy 45.
 
Thank you,

 
Molly West
Tribal Administrator
Colusa Indian Community Council
3730 Hwy 45
Colusa, CA 95932
Phone (530) 458-6517
Cell (530) 701-0379
Fax (530) 458-3866
 
 
 

From: Janis Offermann [mailto:janis@horizonh2o.com] 
Sent: Thursday, March 16, 2023 9:00 AM
To: Molly West <mwest@colusa-nsn.gov>; Jennie Mitchum <jmitchum@colusa-nsn.gov>
Cc: Execs <Execs@colusa-nsn.gov>; Alicia Forsythe <aforsythe@sitesproject.org>; Kevin Spesert
<kspesert@sitesproject.org>; Laurie Warner Herson <laurie.warner.herson@phenixenv.com>
Subject: [WARNING: UNSCANNABLE EXTRACTION FAILED]RE: [WARNING: UNSCANNABLE
EXTRACTION FAILED]RE: [WARNING: UNSCANNABLE EXTRACTION FAILED]RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Sites
Reservoir introduction meeting
 

EXTERNAL MESSAGE: Do not click any links or open any attachments unless you trust the
sender and know the content is safe.

Hi, Molly
That day and time work great.  We will send out a meeting invitation from our end.
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Thank you!
janis
 

From: Molly West <mwest@colusa-nsn.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, March 16, 2023 8:18 AM
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
EXTRACTION FAILED]RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Sites Reservoir introduction meeting
 

EXTERNAL MESSAGE: Do not click any links or open any attachments unless you trust the
sender and know the content is safe.

 

Good Morning Janis,
 

No problem at all.  How about Tuesday, April 18th at 10am?
 
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
Sent: Thursday, March 16, 2023 7:00 AM
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

 
Good morning, Molly.
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We are so pleased that the Executive Committee would like to meet with the team. Unfortunately,
that date does not work for us, as  Ali Forsythe, the Authority’s Environmental Manager, will be
taking off for a well-earned vacation that day.  Can we please schedule something for after she has

returned on April 13th ?
 
Many thanks
Janis
 
 
Janis Offermann, MA, RPA
Cultural Resources Practice Lead
Horizon Water and Environment
1801 7th Street, Suite 100
Sacramento, CA 95811
530.220.4918
 
 
 

From: Molly West <mwest@colusa-nsn.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, March 15, 2023 5:09 PM
To: Janis Offermann <janis@horizonh2o.com>; Jennie Mitchum <jmitchum@colusa-nsn.gov>
Cc: Execs <Execs@colusa-nsn.gov>; Alicia Forsythe <aforsythe@sitesproject.org>; Kevin Spesert
<kspesert@sitesproject.org>; Laurie Warner Herson <laurie.warner.herson@phenixenv.com>
Subject: RE: [WARNING: UNSCANNABLE EXTRACTION FAILED]RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Sites Reservoir
introduction meeting
 

EXTERNAL MESSAGE: Do not click any links or open any attachments unless you trust the
sender and know the content is safe.

 

Hi Janis,
 
The Executive Committee would like to meet with you and your team. Our schedule is pretty busy

the next couple of weeks.  I would like to propose Tuesday, April 4th at 10am?
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, March 8, 2023 12:52 PM
To: Jennie Mitchum <jmitchum@colusa-nsn.gov>
Cc: Execs <Execs@colusa-nsn.gov>; Molly West <mwest@colusa-nsn.gov>; Alicia Forsythe
<aforsythe@sitesproject.org>; Kevin Spesert <kspesert@sitesproject.org>; Laurie Warner Herson
<laurie.warner.herson@phenixenv.com>
Subject: [WARNING: UNSCANNABLE EXTRACTION FAILED]RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Sites Reservoir
introduction meeting
 

EXTERNAL MESSAGE: Do not click any links or open any attachments unless you trust the
sender and know the content is safe.

 
Hi Jennie
I hope you are settling into your new position as Cultural Preservation Officer.  I imagine you are very
busy coming up to speed on everything, but I thought I would reach out to see if you had a chance to
consider when there might be time when you and your tribal leadership can meet with the Site
Project Authority about the Sites Reservoir Project.  We would value your input regarding tribal
cultural resources and establishing the Tribal Working Group.
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.
Thanks
Janis
 
 
Janis Offermann, MA, RPA
Cultural Resources Practice Lead
Horizon Water and Environment
1801 7th Street, Suite 100
Sacramento, CA 95811
530.220.4918
 
 
 

From: Jennie Mitchum <jmitchum@colusa-nsn.gov> 
Sent: Monday, February 27, 2023 5:14 PM
To: Janis Offermann <janis@horizonh2o.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Sites Reservoir introduction meeting
 

EXTERNAL MESSAGE: Do not click any links or open any attachments unless you trust the
sender and know the content is safe.
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Good evening,
I Apologize for not responding sooner, I’m getting to know how to do things please have patience
with me.
 
Thank you
Jennie Mitchum
Cultural Preservation Director
(530)868-8590
 
 

From: Janis Offermann <janis@horizonh2o.com> 
Sent: Monday, February 27, 2023 3:19 PM
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
Subject: Sites Reservoir introduction meeting
 

EXTERNAL MESSAGE: Do not click any links or open any attachments unless you trust the
sender and know the content is safe.

 
Hi, Jennie
I am writing on behalf of the Sites Project Authority (Authority). The Colusa Indian Community
formally requested AB 52 consultation with the Authority for the Sites Project in 2017.  The
Authority met with tribal leaders several times prior to the pandemic, but we have not had the
opportunity to meet in quite some time.  With your arrival, along with changes in tribal leadership,
we are hoping to resume meeting about the project.  We thought that an initial meeting would be
beneficial to bring you, and any of the tribal leadership who would like to attend, up to date on the
status of the project and to discuss next steps for Colusa’s involvement in the project.
 
If such a meeting is agreeable to you, please provide several available dates and times that work for
you.  The Authority can set up a virtual call or, if you prefer, we are happy to meet in person.   
We look forward to meeting with you.
Best regards
Janis
 
 
Janis Offermann, MA, RPA
Cultural Resources Practice Lead
Horizon Water and Environment
1801 7th Street, Suite 100
Sacramento, CA 95811
530.220.4918
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The contents of this email message and any attachments are intended solely for the
addressee(s) and may contain confidential, proprietary and/or privileged information and may be legally
protected from disclosure. If you are not the intended recipient of this message or their agent, or if this message
has been addressed to you in error, please immediately alert the sender by reply email and then delete this
message and any attachments and the reply from your system. If you are not the intended recipient, you are
hereby notified that any disclosure, use, dissemination, copying, or storage of this message or its attachments is
strictly prohibited.
 

This email and any files transmitted with it may be privileged, are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to
whom addressed. If you have received this email in error, please notify the system manager. This message contains confidential
information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or
copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail if you have received this e-mail by mistake and delete this e-mail and
any attachments from your system. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any
action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited..

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


